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April 9, 2009
Penny Ingram
Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission
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PO Box 47250

Olympia, WA  98504-7250

RE:
Solid Waste Definitions Rulemaking, WAC 480-70 - Docket TG-080591
Division Director, Kevin Kiernan - Commenter                                        
Dear Ms. Ingram:

Thank you for this opportunity for the King County Solid Waste Division to respond to the Washington State Utilities and Transportation Commission’s Rulemaking to consider revisions to WAC 480-70, governing solid waste collection companies.  
Comments on Proposed Revisions to WAC 480-70-016

Referenced Sections: All (General Comment)

The King County Solid Waste Division supports many elements of this proposed regulation.  However, we recommend that any state-wide regulations that limit materials or processes that can be called recycling be promulgated under Department of Ecology regulations.  Ecology regulations cover the lifecycle of waste management and recycling, from generator to transporter to management facility, whereas the proposed WUTC regulations cover only transportation.  Applying regulations to only one sector may not be the most effective way to regulate these materials and may have unintended consequences.

For example, under proposed Section 6, it is the motor carrier’s responsibility to ensure that a sorting facility properly manages the materials that are transported to the facility. Unless the transporter and facility are under the same ownership this degree of oversight by the carrier may not be feasible.

Further, state law (Chapter 81.77.030 RCW) specifies that a county’s local comprehensive solid waste plan determines what specific processes constitute recycling (or conversely listing those that do not) within that county.  This law recognizes regional differences in regional recycling markets and the ability to manage materials based on technology feasibly available to that region.  We recommend that promulgation of any state-wide regulation that limits the ability of local comprehensive solid waste plans to determine what processes constitutes recycling be implemented with adequate process to fully evaluate the impacts to all stakeholders – not just those involved with the transport of materials. 

For example, the decision on whether alternate daily cover for landfills (ADC) constitutes recycling can have profound impact on not only who is authorized to haul comingled construction and demolition (C&D) materials but also who processes these materials.  Comingled C&D processing facilities generate a certain amount of residuals.  These are typically fines or inert materials that have no direct markets for recycling into new materials.  These residuals are often used as ADC.  Based on historical reporting data provided to King County by regional comingled processing facilities, these materials comprise on average at least 15% of the processing streams created during processing of comingled loads. 

Department of Ecology regulations require that material recovery facilities accept only recyclable materials and dispose of incidental residual not to exceed five percent (5%) of the total waste received, by weight per year, or ten percent (10%) by weight per load (WAC 173-350-310).  Should ADC be regulated as a solid waste only the haulers and facilities that are permitted to handle solid waste will be able to manage comingled C&D.  

This could likely reduce the availability of recycling options for comingled C&D and put existing C&D processing facilities in our region out of business.

It may be possible to create regulations that restrict the recycling designation for ADC to comingled processors and further limit this designation to a set percentage of the total tonnage received (e.g. up to 15%).  This approach recognizes that processing residuals exist and that management of these residuals as ADC may be the highest and best use for these residuals.  This limit would also recognize the technological limitations of comingled processing while discouraging the management of other C&D materials that have higher and better use from being managed as ADC.

The proposed rule is also unclear about whether mixed waste materials delivered to incinerators with energy recovery is considered “for disposal” or “not for disposal.”  Section 5)b) states that incineration at a disposal facility that does not produce energy is “for disposal.”  The implication is that waste delivered to mixed waste incinerators that do produce energy are “not for disposal,” and thus transporters to these facilities would not need a solid waste collection certificate.  We believe that the transport requirements for delivery of non-source-separated waste to all incineration facilities should be considered “for disposal.”

Thank you again for this opportunity to provide comments and to participate in this rule making process.  We particularly appreciate the Commission's request for input before changes to the regulations are proposed.  If you have any questions, please contact Jeff Gaisford, Manager, Recycling and Environmental Services Section, Solid Waste Division, at 206-296-4484, or via e-mail at jeff.gaisford@kingcounty.gov.  You may also contact me, at 206-296-4385, or via e-mail at kevin.kiernan@kingcounty.gov. 

Sincerely,

Kevin Kiernan 

Division Director
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cc:
Jeff Gaisford, Recycling and Environmental Services Manager, Solid Waste Division 


Jim Neely, Supervisor, Recycling and Environmental Services, Solid Waste Division
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